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In EEOC v. Abercrombie & Fitch 

Stores, the facts concerned an 

Abercrombie & Fitch (“Fitch”) 

store which refused to hire 

Samantha Elauf, a practicing 

Muslim, because the headscarf 

(known as a hijab) that she 

wore to her job interview for 

religious reasons, conflicted 

with Fitch’s employee dress 

policy prohibiting 

“caps.”   Fitch only suspected, 

but did not actually know or 

confirm, that Ms. Elauf wore 

the headscarf for religious 

reasons.  Using Fitch’s ordi-

nary system for evaluating 

applicants, Fitch’s interviewer 

gave Ms. Elauf a rating which 

qualified her to be hired.  The 

store manager directed the 

interviewer not to hire Ms. 

Elauf because her headscarf 

would violate Fitch’s Look 

Policy, as would all other 

headwear or “caps,”  

religious or otherwise.   

 
The EEOC filed suit on Ms. 

Elauf’s behalf, alleging a violation 

of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act 

of 1964, which prohibits a pro-

spective employer from refusing 

to hire an applicant because of 

the applicant’s religious practice 

when the practice could be ac-

commodated without undue 

hardship. The EEOC prevailed in 

the District Court, but the Tenth 

Circuit Court of Appeals re-

versed and granted Fitch’s sum-

mary judgment motion on the 

ground that failure-to-

accommodate liability attaches 

only when the applicant provides 

the employer with actual 

knowledge of his or her need for 

an accommodation. The United 

States Supreme Court reversed 

the judgment for Fitch and re-

manded the case.   

 
The High Court held that to pre-

vail in a disparate-treatment 

claim based on a failure to ac-

commodate a religious practice, 

an applicant need show only that 

his or her need for an accommo-

dation was a motivating factor in 

the employer’s decision, not that 

the employer had knowledge of 

the need for accommodation. 

The disparate-treatment provi-

sion under Title VII requires Ms. 

Elauf to show that Fitch (1) “fail

[ed] . . . to hire” her (2) “because 
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of ” (3) “[her] reli-

gion” (including a religious 

practice). 42 U. S. C. §2000e

–2(a)(1).  This “because of” 

standard is understood to 

mean that the protected 

characteristic cannot be a 

“motivating factor” in an 

employment decision. 

§2000e–2(m).  The Court 

found it significant that 

§2000e–2(a)(1) of Title VII 

does not impose a 

knowledge requirement as 

some antidiscrimination stat-

utes do.  For example, the 

Americans with Disabilities 

Act of 1990 defines discrimi-

nation to include an employ-

er’s failure to make 

“reasonable accommoda-

tions to the known physical 

or mental limitations” of an 

applicant.  42 U.S.C. §12112

(b)(5)(A) (emphasis add-

ed).  Instead under Title VII, 

rather than imposing a 

knowledge standard, it pro-

hibits motive, regardless of 

the state of the actor’s 

knowledge.  The Court re-

fused to add words, i.e., 

“knowledge,” to the statute, 

since that is the province of 

Congress, and construed 

Title VII’s silence as exactly 

that: silence. 

 
To further illustrate the 

difference between “motive” 

and “knowledge,” which the 

Employers May Not Make an Applicant’s Religious Practice, Confirmed or 

Otherwise, a Factor in Employment Decisions  

EEOC v. Abercrombie & Fitch Stores 135 S. Ct. 2028 (2015)  



WALSH MCKEAN FURCOLO LLP 

During this holiday season, the 

firm of Walsh McKean Furcolo 

adopted a family of four.   

 

 

Page 2 WALSH MCKEAN FURCOLO LLP 

Jim Derfler,  

Partner 

Court stated are separate 

concepts, it gave some   

examples.  On the one 

hand, an employer who 

has actual knowledge of 

the need for an accom-

modation does not vio-

late Title VII by refusing 

to hire an applicant if 

avoiding that accommo-

dation is not the mo-

tive.  In contrast, an em-

ployer who acts with the 

motive of avoiding an 

accommodation may vio-

late Title VII even if the 

employer has no more 

than an unsubstantiated 

suspicion that accommo-

dation would be need-

ed.  Specifically, suppose 

that an employer thinks 

(though the employer 

does not know for cer-

tain) that a job applicant 

may be an orthodox Jew 

who will observe the 

Sabbath, and thus be una-

ble to work on Saturdays. 

If such applicant actually 

requires an accommoda-

tion of that religious 

practice, and the employ-

er’s desire to avoid 

providing accommodation 

is a motivating factor in 

deciding not to hire the 

applicant, the employer 

violates Title VII.   

In sum, the Court held 

that an employer may not 

make an applicant’s reli-

gious practice, even if the 

employer has no 

knowledge about such 

religious practice, a factor 

in employment decisions. 

Summary Judgment Affirmed for Vehicle Dealership under the Song-Beverly Consumer 

Warranty Act 

Leber v. DKD of Davis, Inc. 2015 WL 3524606 (Cal.App. 3 Dist.) 

 

California’s Third District Court of Appeal affirmed a vehicle dealership’s motion for summary judgment under Song-

Beverly at California Civil Code section 1790, et seq.  The appellate court found that General Motor’s warranty did not 

apply to the used truck with an allegedly defective transmission because the vehicle was sold “as is.”  

Tender of Defense for Claim of Sexual Assault Not Covered by 

Homeowner’s Policy, but Not Excluded by Umbrella Policy 

Gonzalez v. Fire Ins. Exchange 234 Cal.App.4th 1220 (2015)  

Insured and other mem-

bers of a baseball team 

sued by plaintiff for sexual 

assault, tendered the claim 

through homeowner’s and 

umbrella policies issued by 

Fire Insurance Exchange 

(FIE) and Truck Insurance 

Exchange (TIE), respec-

tively.  Both insurers de-

nied coverage on the basis 

that plaintiff’s claims did 

not constitute an occur-

rence, and the insured’s 

conduct was willful.  The 

trial court granted sum-

mary judgment in favor 

of the insurers.  

 
The appellate court held 

FIE owed no duty to 

defend, as plaintiff’s com-

plaint alleged acts that do 

not constitute an acci-

dent (pursuant to the 

definition of an occur-

rence in the poli-

cy).  Additionally, even 

though plaintiff alleged a 

cause of action for negli-

gence, the court held the 

pleading of that claim 

“adds nothing to a com-

plaint otherwise devoid 

of facts giving rise to a 

potential for covered 

liability.” 

 
Conversely, the appellate 

court reversed on the 

umbrella policy, holding 

TIE’s coverage sets forth 

no requirement that an 

enumerated offense in 

the personal injury cov-

erage be accidental in 

nature.  Therefore, plain-

tiff’s causes of action for 

false imprisonment, slan-

der per se, and invasion 

of privacy raised the po-

tential for coverage.   

 
Furthermore, the appel-

late court held the ex-

pected/intended and 

sexual-molestation ex-

clusions did not eliminate 

the potential for cover-

age.  The complaint sug-

gested the insured may 

not have been directly 

involved in the assault, 

but was merely present 

in the room while the act 

took place.   

 
Finally, the court ob-

served that TIE failed to 

meet its evidentiary bur-

den of conclusively estab-

lishing through undisput-

ed facts that the insured’s 

conduct fell within  

the exclusions. 
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Primary Assumption of the Risk Bars Kickboxer Student’s Claims against Athletic Club 

Honeycutt v. Meridian Sports Club, LLC 179 Cal.Rptr.3d 473 (2014) 
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The Buck Stops Here – No Coverage for Right of Publicity Claims 

Alterra Excess and Surplus Insurance Co. v. Snyder 234 Cal. App. 4th 1390 (2015) 

The California Court of 

Appeal for the First Dis-

trict recently held that an 

exclusion for 

“Infringement of Copy-

right, Patent, Trademark 

or Trade Secret” was con-

spicuous, plain and clear 

and applied to preclude 

coverage for claims based 

on violation of the right of 

publicity. 

  
Buckminster “Bucky” 

Fuller was a designer, au-

thor and inventor credited 

with many creations includ-

ing, most notably, the geo-

desic dome (the spherical 

structure used for, i.e., Epcot 

at Disney World).  Mr. Fuller 

died in 1983 and since then 

the Estate of Buckminster 

Fuller has licensed the right 

to use Mr. Fuller’s name and 

likeness in various commer-

cial enterprises, including 

Apple advertisements and 

U.S. postage stamps. 

 
In or before 2009, Maxfield 

and Overton Holdings, LLC 

began selling “Buckyballs” 

and related items.  Buckyballs 

are adult desk toys com-

prised of 216 “round rare 

earth magnets packaged in a 

cube shape” that can be ma-

nipulated to form various 

shapes of varying levels of 

difficulty.  Among Maxfield’s 

products was “The Big Book 

of Bucky” which explains 

how to make various shapes 

out of Buckyballs.  The book 

states that “Buckyballs were 

named for Buckminster 

Fuller” and summarizes Mr. 

Fuller’s accomplishments.   

 
In May 2012, the Estate sued 

Maxfield for unfair  

competition under the  

Lanham Act, invasion of  
privacy, unauthorized use of 

name and likeness under 

California Civil Code section 

3344.1, and unfair competi-

tion under violation of Busi-

ness and Professions Code 

section 17200 et seq. 

 
In 2010, Alterra Excess and 

Surplus Insurance Compa-

ny’s predecessor had issued 

Maxfield a CGL insurance 

policy.  Alterra agreed to 

defend Maxfield against the 

Estate’s claims under a res-

ervation of rights and filed a 

declaratory relief action.  

While the underlying case 

was pending, the United 

States Consumer Product 

Safety Commission filed an 

administrative complaint 

against Maxfield demand-

ing that it stop making 

Buckyballs due to public 

safety concerns.  Within 

six months, Maxfield 

stopped doing business 

and dissolved its compa-

ny.  The Estate settled 

with Maxfield and re-

ceived an assignment of 

its claims.       

 
Alterra moved for judg-

ment on the pleadings 

asserting, among other 

grounds, the intellectual 

property (“IP”) exclusion.  

The IP exclusion was 

titled “Infringement of 

Copyright, Patent, trade-

mark or Trade Secret” 

and applied to “‘Personal 

and advertising injury’ 

arising out of the in-

fringement of copyright, 

patent, trademark, trade 

secret or other intellectual 

property rights.” (Emphasis 

added.)  The trial court 
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granted Alterra’s motion based 

on the IP exclusion and the 

Court of Appeal affirmed.   

 
On appeal, the Estate argued 

that the IP exclusion was not 

“conspicuous, plain and clear.”  

The court disagreed, explaining 

that the IP exclusion was on an 

Insurance Services Office (ISO) 

industry form, appeared under 

a bold-faced heading entitled 

“Exclusions,” and that each 

exclusion’s title was bold-faced 

making it conspicuous, plain 

and clear in placement and visi-

bility.   

 
The court further found that 

the language itself was plain and 

clear.  The court also found 

that, contrary to the Estate’s 

arguments, the words “other 

intellectual property rights” 

were not inconspicuous or 

ambiguous and noted that the 

exclusion has never been criti-

cized on those grounds by any 

other courts applying it.  The 

court further found that Alter-

ra’s IP exclusion encompassed 

not only copyright, patent, 

trademark and trade secrets as 

stated in the title, but also “other 

intellectual property rights,” suffi-

cient to extend to the Estate’s 

invasion of privacy and right of 

publicity claims, citing to Aroa 

Marketing, Inc. v. Hartford Ins. Co. 

of the Midwest 198 Cal.App.4th 

781 (2011) wherein an appellate 

court held a similar exclusion 

barred claims based on the unau-

thorized use of a model’s image 

and likeness.   

 
Based thereon, the appellate 

court affirmed the trial court’s 

ruling that Alterra owed no de-

fense or indemnity obligation to 

Maxfield under its policy. 

 
The Alterra ruling not only affirms 

the broad application of the IP 

exclusion, but it also affirms that 

exclusions which contain exam-

ples of excluded claims yet also 

include non-limiting language may 

be extended to claims of  

general similitude.  
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